Answers to Vendor Questions

RFP 11-36

Women’s Work Release

Q1 - Are there any key personnel that must be employed at the facility?  If yes, please provide.

A1-   The IDOC will not specify any key personnel beyond the Superintendent mentioned in the specifications; however, the vendor should propose the personnel it believes will allow it to man the facility as specified in the RFP 24 hours a day 7 days a week.  
Q2 - Are there any specific position, education and/or experience requirements for staff? If yes, please provide.  
A2 – The IDOC requires the Superintendent/Director/Facility Head have a Bachelors degree.   The IDOC specifies only that all other positions meet all local, State, and federal requirements for delivery of services. 
Q3 - What are the eligibility requirements for placement in a community or reentry center? 

A3 – See Appendix A (attached at the end of this document).
Q4 – Please explain the type of separation that is needed if we house male and female offenders?

A4 -   There should be physical barrier to ensure no contact while in the building.  Also, in the building the different genders should not have the ability to visually communicate in any way (e.g., through windows, glass doors, etc).   

Q5 - Please provide a list of the 10 most common chronic medical diseases found in the female offenders in community centers?

A5 - 1) Asthma.  2) HEPC.  3) Hypertension.  4) Diabetes.  5) Hypothyroidism.  6) Seizures.  7) Hyperlipidemia. 8) HIV.  9) COPD. 10) CAD.

Q6 - How many women currently in community centers are taking psychotropic medications?

A6 – Currently unknown as to the exact number, but as a representation, currently 14% of all female offenders in IDOC are on psychotropic medications.
Q7 - Would pregnant women be allowed to be placed in the community center?  If so, historically how many pregnant women have been in the program for each of the past 3 years?

A7- No pregnant women will be transferred.
Q8 - If we choose to use the alternative medical proposal and utilize the state’s current medical vendor, will the proposer subcontract directly with the vendor or will IDOC make those arrangements? 

A8 – The IDOC will make those arrangements with CMS, and the current IDOC rate for Medical Services will be applied.   The vendor will not have to subcontract with CMS.
Q9 - Pg. 33 – Does the IDOC’s current contracted rate of $1.154 per meal include staffing?  If so, please provide the associated staffing that would be provided at the facilities.

A9 – The rate includes staffing by the food service provider using offender labor to supplement.
Q10 - Pg. 33 - The baseline for this RFP is $8,525,670 for a total of 4 years.  What is the source of the $8,525,670 and is it the cost for an average daily population of 150 female offenders for each of the past 4 years? Does the $8,525,670 include the cost for food service and medical/mental health? Also, please provide the associated staffing and a detailed breakdown of the annualized costs for the past 3 years to provide the services requested in the RFP. 

A10 -   The source of the baseline is the current rate paid by the IDOC at its State run Indianapolis Women’s Work Release facility.   This rate is $38.93 and the $8,425,670 baseline was arrived at by multiplying this rate by 150 offenders by 365 days of the year.  The rate includes all services including food, medical and mental health.   The associated staffing is for the past three years is difficult to quantify since the population of the current Indianapolis Women’s Work Release facility is 82 offenders maximum.    However, for 82 female offenders at the current facility, the staffing was as follows: 26 staff approved:  21 were custody, 1 admin assist, 1 admin secretary, 1 maintenance foreman, 2 counselors, 1 broad band exec, and 1 HR associate.

Q11 -Historically, how many female offenders have there been in this re-entry program?

A11 -  Historically, the IDOC has had the following number of female offenders in work release on the following dates:   

· 12/14/2010 – 171

· 12/31/2009 – 151

· 12/31/2008 – 154

· 12/31/2007 – 143
· Currently there are 96 beds at IWCRC and 54 beds at VOA that are close to capacity daily.  

Q12 - Would the IDOC be willing to consider proposals from a vendor for 150 beds in Marion County, instead of 100 beds in Marion County and 50 beds in another county?

A12 – No.   The specifications for  having two counties has to do with the IDOC’s need to diversify these services among State counties.
Q13 - Will the vendor’s contracted per diem rate for this RFP be impacted in the future if it proposes to use the IDOC’s current medical/mental health provider and the medical/mental health provider’s per diem rate changes in the future?

A13 – Yes.   The current IDOC rates are only used to create parity in reviewing the cost proposals.   The vendor will be subject to any rate increases in the medical rates which shall be increased by amendment to the contract.   
Q14 - What are the costs that the vendor may seek reimbursement from the offenders and what are the related policies and procedures regarding offender reimbursement? Please provide.

A14 – The vendor shall seek reimbursement from offenders according to the limitations and guidelines established in IC 11-10-8-6 (Start w/IC 11-8-2-5 (a)(9); proceed to 11-10-8-6 to 6.5)

The IDOC policy for such reimbursement by offenders is attached to this document as “APPENDIX B”   
Q15 - Will the Department consider extending the due date for proposal submission?

A15 – Yes.  If it is determined that more time is warranted due to the timing and number of questions.
Q16 - Insurance requirements in the sample contract “Attachment B, Item #24” differ from the insurance requirements in the RFP, section 2.4.5, p. 22. Please clarify.

A16 – The sample contract gives the State boilerplate for insurance.   It is intended that the boilerplate amount be raised.   The insurance requirement in the RFP, section 1.4.5, p.22 is the specified requirement, notwithstanding what is stated in the sample contract.
Q17 - There is an indication that one hundred of the individuals who would be served by this facility are from the Marion County/Indianapolis area and fifty are located elsewhere in the state. Could Department give us some indication where a second centralized facility might best be sited to most effectively serve the fifty inmates?

A17 - The current wait list for approved females are not centrally located and only has four offenders from Marion County.  The other offenders are well represented through the state.  The second facility would better serve the population if it were North or South but East or West of Marion County.   

Q18 - The RFP indicates that residents are to pay for the required drug/alcohol testing. How would vendors handle the costs for those residents who initially arrive and don’t have funds or those who haven’t found a job and don’t have funds?

A18 - The offender is only required to pay as a sanction for a positive test result so there would be an order for restitution through the Disciplinary Hearing Process.  If the offender does not have sufficient funds in her account, then there would be a “hold” put on the account until the offender had enough to pay the amount of the restitution. That hold may last until the offender obtains employment and gets her first check or until money is sent in for her to cover the amount of the restitution.  There should not be a case where someone is the work release program does not have funds for restitution, but if there is, the vendor is responsible for the cost.  
Q19 - The RFP indicates that the Contractor may have a mixed gender population as long as the facility provides appropriate “separation” of males and females.”  Please define “proper separation” (i.e. separate entrance/exit; no sight/sound contact; limited contact in common area while under direct supervision; etc).

A19 - There should be no sight/sound contact permitted.  A physical barrier should exist to ensure no contact between or among offenders of different genders while they are in the building.  There should be no way that offenders of different genders can visually communicate while in the building, that is, no windows, glass doors, etc.  No contact in common areas, but a separate entrance/exit is not necessary.  As a condition of permitting this shared housing, the IDOC reserves the right to review such separation measures, and the Vendor agrees to make whatever reasonable upgrades or modifications to its infrastructure and policy is recommended by the IDOC to maintain or improve such separation.

Q20 - Would the Department allow vendors to house residents from another contract (e.g. BOP) at the same site?

A20 – Yes.  As long as this does not interfere with bed availability when needed.
Q21 - Section 2.4.26 – states that “Vendor shall be agreeable to working with Prison Enterprises Network (PEN),” are vendors required to work with PEN or can another vendor be used?

A21 -   No.   Pen is preferred but not required.
Q22 - Can a vendor submit separate pricing for the 100 bed and 50 bed programs since the costs of each program are likely to be different?

A22 -  No.  The IDOC is seeking a unified cost for all facilities.
Q23 - Would the Department allow vendors to tour existing Release Centers before the proposal due date? More specifically, the Women’s Release Center housed at the Girl’s School?
A23 – No.
Q24 - Medical and Dental Care. Will the IDOC’’s medical vendor come to our site and provide Medical Services if we elect to utilize their services?

A24 - If the vendor elects to have CMS provide the medical services, then the vendor’s facilities will be required to have all the necessary infrastructure and in place for Aramark to provide the services.  This infrastructure includes, but is not limited  to, in the case of medical service, examination area or infirmary with at least two examination rooms, and fixtures such as counters, cabinets, medical beds, examination tables, examination chairs, pneumatic systems, and computer and internet access equipment that meets all local and state codes and health regulations.    

Q25 - Food Service. Will the IDOC’s vendor Aramark come to our facility and provide food service. If so, what equipment will the vendor who operates the Community Work Release center be responsible for providing. i.e. Kitchen Equipment, dishes, inmate kitchen staff, etc.

A25 – If the vendor elects to have Aramark provide the food services, then the vendor’s facilities  will be required to have all the necessary infrastructure and in place for Aramark to provide the services.  This infrastructure includes, but is not limited to, a kitchen, dining, food preparation and serving areas, and fixtures such as ovens, oven hoods, refrigerators, freezers, chillers, stoves, trash disposal, and dishwashing equipment that meets all local and state codes and health regulations.

Q26 - Is the IDOC open to a proposal to operate a work 30-50 bed release center?

A26 – No…if the total does not reach 150 
Q27 - What is the number of inmates the baseline $8,525,670 for a total of 4 years is based upon. 150 inmates? 

A27 – 150 inmates.
Q28 - Is this RFP/ contract to replace the Indianapolis Women's Community Re-Entry center?

A28 – Yes.
Q29 - Does the IDOC intend on closing the Indianapolis Men’s or Women’s Work Release Center?

A29 – The IDOC intends to close both facilities and transfer their populations to private run facilities.
Q30 - Does the IDOC currently have any contracts for Work Release or Community Re-Entry Centers in Indianapolis with any private companies?  If so, can we review the contract(s) or can you post them online.

A30 – Yes.  The IDOC has contracts in Indianapolis with the following private companies:  The John P. Craine House, EDS#D12-9-70; the Volunteers of America, EDS# D12-7-118; and Liberty Behavioral Health Corporation, EDS# D12-1-047.   These contracts may be found online at the following link:   http://www.in.gov/idoa/2448.htm  and conducting a public search of active contracts using the EDS# of the contract.

Q31 - Is the Men’s Work Release Center on 448 W. Norwood St. Indianapolis, IN 46225 still in operation?

A31 – No.    
Q32 - At the Pre Proposal Conference, the Department stated that a Respondent may subcontract the 50 beds slated for locations outside of Marion County to multiple vendors, as the need may only be for a few beds in each of multiple counties statewide.  If the primary Respondent provides medical and mental health services in-house in a Marion County location may its subcontractors opt to use IDOC services, if necessary?

A32 – No.   The contractor must choose either to provide the services itself to all facilities, or to utilize the IDOC contracted providers for al facilities.
Q33 - RFP Section 2.3.9. Sub-Contractors -    Please confirm our understanding that the information required for service subcontractors, (i.e., vendors providing complete re-entry facility services under contract to the prime vendor) is limited specifically to the response requirements of RFP Section 2.3.9.  In other words, will it be acceptable to the IDOC for Respondent to attach the sample subcontract between Vendor and subcontractor setting forth subcontractor’s adherence to all relevant portions of the IDOC contract concerning facility conditions, permitting and license, and IDOC access to inspect such facilities at any time? 

If any additional information is required for subcontracted vendor services, please provide detail on the specific requirements.

A33 – No other specification are included.
Q34 - RFP Section 3.2 Evaluation Criteria  and  §3.2.6 – Minority and Women’s Business -  Please clarify the following:  “Minority (10 points) & Women's Business (10 points) SubVendor Commitment - (20 points)”,  by confirming that the Respondent’s subcontracted reentry facility bed providers are exempt from any requirement to complete the RFP’s Minority and Women Business purchasing goals forms in the Respondent’s proposal, and that the 20% total commitment goal refers only to the Respondent’s (i.e., prime contractor) response.

A34 – IDOA is not sure we understand the question.  If the potential responder is requesting an exemption for the MWBE points, there is no exemption.  Either the participation is included in the proposal or it is not.  Non-inclusion means the loss of the MWBE scoring points.  If this does not answer your question, please contact the M/WBE office for assistance
Q35 - Can a vendor submit a proposal for less than 150 beds total and still be technically acceptable?
A35 -   It depends on the maximum capacity of the facilities being proposed.  The specifications call for capability of up to 150 beds.   This means the facilities must be currently capable of accommodating a maximum of 150 offenders.  If some of the 150 beds are currently being used for other contracted offenders resulting in some of those 150 beds being used, this will not disqualify a vendor, but the vendor should in this case, provide a schedule or timeline indicating the number of beds that will be available in the months following the implementation of the contract.   The availability of beds on this timeline will be a factor in evaluating the proposals.  
Q36 - Can a vendor submit for less than the RFP target number for Marion County of 100 beds and still be technically acceptable?

A36 – It depends on the maximum capacity of the facilities being proposed.  The specifications call for capability of up to 100 beds for Marion County.   This means the facility in Marion County must be currently capable of accommodating a maximum of 100 offenders.  If some of the 100 beds are currently being used for other contracted offenders resulting in some of those 100 beds being used, this will not disqualify a vendor, but the vendor should in this case, provide a schedule or timeline indicating the number of beds that will be available in the months following the implementation of the contract.   The availability of beds on this timeline will be a factor in evaluating the proposals.  
Q37 -  Can a vendor submit for only Marion County and not another county in the state and still be technically acceptable?


A37 – No. 
Q38 - Can a vendor submit for only a county other than Marion County and still be technically acceptable?
A38 – No.  
Q39 -  Is it permissible for two agencies to collaborate on a proposal, so long as one is the identified "lead"?

A39 -  Yes.  But the collaboration must be included as part of a single, unified proposal.


Q40 - Can the IDOC inform proposed vendors of the number of female inmates, by county of commitment, who were assigned to work release in the last 24 months?

A40 – See Appendix C.
Q41 - At the RFI, there was discussion about the potential of the "out of Marion County" beds being a total of 50 with some portion being available for use for male work release candidates.  Is this an option for the "out of Marion County" portion of this RFP?

A41 – The IDOC has decided in the interest of fairness to limit this RFP to female offenders for all facilities.  However, the Respondent may include with it proposal information as to its willingness and capability to house male offenders at a future date as follows.
While not a requirement of this RFP, if a Respondent to this proposal has a facility outside of Marion County, Indiana capable of housing male offenders, and that facility can accept male offenders at the same time the Respondent is housing female offenders under the contract resulting from this RFP, and  those male offenders can be housed under the same terms and conditions as in the contract proposed for this RFP,  the Respondent may include the information on that facility and the proposed rate its proposal as a separate item.   If a Respondent elects to provide this information, the IDOC reserves the right to, at a future date, contract with Respondent to add these male offenders to the services being provided by the Respondent if Respondent is awarded a contract pursuant to this RFP.   This included information will not be used as a factor in evaluating proposals.
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CRITERIA FOR CONSIDERATION FOR SECURITY LEVEL PLACEMENT

SECURITY LEVEL 1

MINIMUM SECURITY CRITERIA

1. Within 48 months to the offender’s Earliest Possible Release Date (EPRD).

2. In Credit Class 1.

3. Free from an active felony detainer, which extends beyond the Offender's Earliest Possible Release Date (EPRD).  Parole violators may not be considered until after completing parole revocation procedures.  Offenders from other states not intending to extradite (Local Service Only) may be considered for Level One (1) placement unless the pending charge is for an offense against person (Murder, Kidnapping, Criminal Confinement, Battery, Assault, Sex Offenses, Robbery etc.) The state issuing the detainer must either notify the Department of Correction in writing that it will not extradite or must have failed to respond to a written request to file a warrant within sixty (60) days.  The Department shall request this information by certified mail, return receipt requested.  Offenders with a misdemeanor or a community correction detainer are eligible to be considered for minimum security placement.
4. Free from:

A
A criminal conviction or ADP conviction for Escape or Attempted Escape or Failure to Return to Lawful Detention as an adult or juvenile from a correctional or court ordered mental health facility (including jails) for forty-eight (48) months from the time of apprehension to the time of consideration and transfer.

B
A current commitment period sentence for escape or attempted escape.

5.
Free from ever having been convicted for:  
· Murder, 
· Kidnapping, 
· Battery by Bodily Waste (Class A Felony),  
· Criminal Confinement (Class B) IC 35-42-3-3,
· Criminal Confinement (Class C and D), if the victim is under 18 years of age, 

· All Sex Offenses under IC 35-42-4 and IC 35-44-1-5, 
· Class A or B offense involving Serious Bodily Injury as defined by IC 35-41-1-25, 
· Any offense involving the death of a victim, except for Driving While Intoxicated Causing a Death and Traffic Offenses Causing a Death. 

· Dissemination of material or conducting performance harmful to minors IC 35-49-3-3, 
· Stalking IC 35-45-10-5, 
· A conviction for an attempt or conspiracy to commit any of the above listed offenses, 

· A crime under the laws of another jurisdiction that is substantially equivalent to any of the above listed offenses.

6.
Free from a conviction during the current commitment or within ten (10) years for the following offenses:

· Battery by Bodily Waste (Class B or C Felony),

· Battery (Class C Felony),

· A conviction for an attempt or conspiracy to commit any of the above listed offenses,

· A crime under the laws of another jurisdiction that is substantially equivalent to any of the above listed offenses.

7.
Free from a disciplinary transfer from a Level One (1) facility due to a conviction for a Class A or B Disciplinary Code conviction for one (1) year proceeding the time of consideration and transfer.  Offenders transferred from Level One (1) due to a conviction for a Class B-245 conduct violation will be considered on an individual basis.

8.
Free of a Class A Disciplinary Code conduct violation for one (1) year and a Class B Disciplinary Code conduct violation for six (6) months prior to the time of consideration for transfer and throughout program participation.
9.   Convictions for the Disciplinary Code violation B-245 ‘Use or possession of more than one cigarette…’ shall not prevent the placement of an offender in a Security Level One (1) or Work Release Facility nor shall it necessitate the transfer of an offender from a Security Level One (1) or Work Release Facility.  For the purpose of classification placement criteria, Disciplinary Code violation B-245 is to be handled in the same manner as a Class C or D Disciplinary Code conviction.
10.
Security Level 1 offenders who meet Minimum Security Criteria may be assigned to out custody/off ground crews under non-DOC supervision. 
11. For Medical and Disability Code criteria refer to Appendix XV-C, Adult Male and Female Medical Codes and Definitions.  

RESTRICTED MINIMUM SECURITY CRITERIA
1. Within 36 months to the Offender's Earliest Possible Release Date (EPRD).
2. In Credit Class 1.
3. Free from an active felony detainer, which extends beyond the Offender's Earliest Possible Release Date (EPRD).  Parole violators may not be considered until after completing parole revocation procedures.  Offenders from other states not intending to extradite (Local Service Only) may be considered for Level One (1) placement unless the pending charge is for an offense against person (Murder, Kidnapping, Criminal Confinement, Battery, Assault, Sex Offenses, Robbery etc.)  The state issuing the detainer must either notify the Department of Correction in writing that it will not extradite or must have failed to respond to a written request to file a warrant within sixty (60) days.  The Department shall request this information by certified mail, return receipt requested.  Offenders with a misdemeanor or a community correction detainer are eligible to be considered for minimum security placement.
4. Free from:

A
A criminal conviction or Disciplinary Code conviction for Escape or Attempted Escape or Failure to Return to Lawful Detention as an adult or juvenile from a correctional or court ordered mental health facility (including jails) for forty-eight (48) months from the time of apprehension to the time of consideration and transfer.

B.
A current commitment period sentence for escape or attempted escape.

5.
Free from ever having been convicted for:  
· Kidnapping (IC 35-42-4-8), if the victim is under 18 years of age, 

· Criminal Confinement IC 35-42-3-3, if the victim is under 18 years of age,
· All Sex Offenses under IC 35-42-4 and IC 35-44-15,   

· Stalking IC 35-45-10-5, 
· Dissemination of material or conducting performance harmful to minors IC 35-49-3-3, 
· A conviction for an attempt or conspiracy to commit any of the above listed offenses,

· A crime under the laws of another jurisdiction that is substantially equivalent to any of the above listed offenses.

6.
Offenders with convictions for the following offenses will be considered for placement in a Restricted Minimum Security Facility when they are within 36 months of their Earliest Possible Release Date (EPRD):

· Murder

· Kidnapping (IC 35-42-4-8), if the victim is over 18 years of age.

· Criminal Confinement IC 35-42-3.3, if the victim is over 18 years of age,

· Battery by Bodily Waste (Class A), 

· Battery (Class A or B Felony), 

· Class A or B offense involving Serious Bodily Injury as defined by IC 35-41-1-25, 

· Any offense involving the death of a victim, except for Driving While Intoxicated Causing a Death and Traffic Offenses Causing a Death who meet criteria for Minimum Security placement, 

· A conviction for an attempt or conspiracy to commit any of the above listed offenses, 
· A crime under the laws of another jurisdiction that is substantially equivalent to any of the above listed offenses.

7.
Free from a disciplinary transfer from a Level One (1) facility due to a conviction for a Class A or B Disciplinary Code conviction for one (1) year proceeding the time of consideration and transfer.  Offenders transferred from Level One (1) due to a conviction for a Class B-245 conduct violation will be considered on an individual basis.

8.
Free of a Class A Disciplinary Code conduct violation for one (1) year and a Class B Disciplinary Code conduct violation for six (6) months prior to the time of consideration for transfer and throughout program participation.
9.
Convictions for the Disciplinary Code violation B-245 ‘Use or possession of more than one cigarette…’ shall not prevent the placement of an offender in a Security Level One (1) or Work Release Facility nor shall it necessitate the transfer of an offender from a Security Level One (1) or Work Release Facility.  For the purpose of classification placement criteria, Disciplinary Code violation B-245 is to be handled in the same manner as a Class C or D Disciplinary Code conviction.
10.
Security Level 1 offenders who meet Restricted Minimum Security Criteria may not be assigned to out custody/off ground crews outside the secured perimeter of the Level 1 facility.

11.
For Medical and Disability Code criteria refer to Appendix XV-C, Adult Male and Female Medical Codes and Definitions.  

COMMUNITY RE-ENTRY CRITERIA
1. Must be classified as Security Level One (1) and meet the criteria for placement in Minimum or Restricted Minimum Security, with the following exceptions:

A.
Must be conditionally approved for Work Release/Study Release Category F-3, P-1 or C-1 on the date of transfer to a Community Re-Entry Center.
B.
Must be in compliance with IC 11-10-8-3, by meeting the minimum literacy standards of a sixth (6) grade equivalency in reading and writing.  This standard does not apply to an offender who:

(1)
Is unable to meet the minimum literacy standard as a result of a handicap: (Handicap is defined as, an offender who, in the judgment of Psychological, Psychiatric or Education staff is potentially learning disabled, mentally or developmentally impaired to the extent that he/she is incapable of achieving minimum literacy competency.)

(2)
Length of sentence prevents the offender from achieving minimum literacy standards before expiration of sentence.

(3)
Holds a High School Diploma, General Equivalency Diploma, or Post-Secondary Education.

(4)
Has an IQ below 80.
C.
If committed for Driving While Intoxicated, or any alcohol/drug vehicle-related offense, the offender must meet one of the following conditions in order to be eligible for transfer to a Community Re-Entry Center: 

(1).
Have voluntarily participated in substance abuse counseling while incarcerated and have received positive program evaluations while in that program.  Must continue successful participation in a Substance Abuse Program while at the Community Re-Entry Center.

(2).
Offender's who have not met the above criteria of positive participation in a substance abuse program prior to placement in a Community Re-Entry Center, must successfully participate in a Substance Abuse Program at the Community Re-Entry Center.  They must also be a minimum of ninety (90) days from their Earliest Possible Release Date (EPRD).

D.
Must be an American citizen or an alien authorized to work in the United States of America as verified by: a U.S. Passport, a Certificate of United States Citizenship, a Certificate of Naturalization, an unexpired foreign passport if the passport has an appropriate and unexpired endorsement of the U.S. Attorney General authorizing employment in the U.S, a resident alien card authorizing employment in the U.S. or other alien registration card if it contains a photo of the individual and other personal identifying information.
E.
Employability in the U.S. as confirmed by possession of a Social Security Number or Certificate of Birth in the U.S. or nationality established at birth as indicated by the Reception-Diagnostic Center.

F.
Free from a disciplinary transfer from any DOC facility or Community Transition Program, unless beyond the offender's control, within forty-eight (48) months proceeding consideration and transfer.  

G.
Community Re-Entry Categories:

(1).
Work /Study Release Category F-3 Criteria:



a.
Satisfies the Work/Study Release Criteria.
b.
Shall serve a minimum of fifteen calendar days in a Department of Correction facility prior to transfer to a Community Re-Entry Center.

c.
Shall be between the minimum of 3 months and the maximum of 12 months from a confirmed Earliest Possible Release Date (EPRD) on the date of transfer to a Community Re-Entry Center.


(2).
Ineligible for Work/Study Release Category F-5 Criteria:



Does not satisfy all of the requirements for Community Re-Entry.


(3).
Discretionary Clemency Category C-1 Criteria:


a.
Conditional clemency has been granted by the Governor of the 


State of Indiana.


b.
Successful participation in a Community Re-Entry Program is a 


condition of granting of clemency.


c.
The length of stay in a Community Re-Entry Center will depend 


upon:

((1)).
Statement of condition of granting clemency.

((2)).
Offender's behavior in the Community Re-Entry Center.


(4).
Discretionary Parole Category P-1 Criteria:


a.
Conditional parole has been granted by the Parole Board upon 
successful participation in the Community Re-Entry program.


b.
Upon successful participation in community re-entry, the offender 
shall be released to parole supervision.


c.
Satisfies the Work/Study Release Criteria.


d.
The length of stay in a Community Re-Entry Center will depend 
upon:

((1)).
Statement of condition of granting parole.

((2)).
Offender’s behavior in the Community Re-Entry Center.
((3)).
Shall be assigned to a Community Re-Entry Center for no longer than 12 months.

2. Projected Activation Date:

A. 
An offender conditionally eligible for participation in a Work/Study Release Program shall be assigned a Projected Activation Date (PAD).  This date will be the date the offender is eligible to submit a Transfer Request.

B.
The Projected Activation Date (PAD) is determined by subtracting 14 months from the Earliest Possible Release Date (EPRD).  Example: If the EPRD is 12-10-2008, the PAD would be 10-10-07.  If the offender has less than 14 months remaining to be served, the Projected Activation Date would be immediate.

3. Effective Date:

A. The Effective Date (ED) is the date the offender is eligible to transfer to and participate in the Work/Study Release Program.

B. This date is determined by subtracting 12 months from the offender's Earliest Possible Release Date (EPRD).  Example: If the EPRD is 12-10-2008, the ED would be 12-10-2007.  If the offender has less than 12 months remaining to be served, the Effective Date would be immediate.
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Numbers include only new and recommitments. Parole violators and other return types are not included.
*Unknown=offenders who were sentenced to DOC, but no sentence information was received.
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I.
DEFINITIONS:
For the purpose of these administrative procedures, the following definitions are presented:

A.
Inmate Trust Fund:  The financial account maintained in trust for offenders as provided in the administrative procedures for Policy 04-01-104.

B.
Subsistence Fees:  The fees assessed to an offender for participation in a work release program which are intended to cover the cost of room and board.

C.
Violent Crime Victim’s Compensation Fund:  The special fund established by IC 5-2-6.1-40 to provide monetary awards for the victims or families of victims of violent crimes.

D.
Work/Study Release Subsistence Special Revenue Fund:  The fund established by IC 11-10-8-6.5 for the expansion, maintenance and operation of the work release program.

II. ESTABLISHMENT OF FINANCIAL ACCOUNTING SYSTEM AND PROCEDURES:
The Fiscal Management Division shall establish and implement a financial accounting system and accounting procedures for the Work Release program.  The system and procedures shall be approved by the State Board of Accounts.  A staff person shall be designated to perform the accounting and administration of the centralized Work Release-Study Release Subsistence Special Revenue Fund.

III.
RESPONSIBILITY FOR ASSESSING SUBSISTENCE FEES: 

The Deputy Commissioner/Operations in conjunction with the State Budget Agency, shall establish standards for the assessment of subsistence fees for offender participation in the Work Release program.  These standards shall comply with IC 11-10-8-6.

Each Facility Head of a facility in which a work release program is operated shall be responsible for the accounting of offender subsistence fee assessments in a manner approved by the Chief Financial Officer.

III.
THE WORK RELEASE-STUDY RELEASE SUBSISTENCE SPECIAL REVENUE FUND: 

A Work Release-Study Release Subsistence Special Revenue Fund shall be established and maintained in accordance with IC 11-10-8-6.5.  All subsistence fees shall be deposited in this fund not later than the tenth (10th) day of the month following the month in which they were received.  Any earnings on the money deposited in the fund shall remain in the fund.

The Work Release-Study Release Subsistence Special Revenue Fund may be used for:

A.
Construction of new Work Release or Study Release facilities;

B.
Maintenance of Work Release or Study Release facilities;

C.
General operating costs of the Work Release or Study Release programs, including offender services;

D.
Providing programs or services established under IC 11-13-8; or,

E.
The matching of federal funds for use in the Work Release or Study Release programs.

The Commissioner shall submit a proposed budget for expenditure of the money in the fund to the State Budget Agency for approval in accordance with IC 4-12-1.

IV.
ESTABLISHMENT OF OFFENDER FINANCIAL AGREEMENTS: 

All offenders approved for participation in the Work Release program shall complete State Form 9528, REQUIRED DEDUCTIONS, upon transfer to the Work Release program.

V.
DISTRIBUTION OF OFFENDER EARNINGS: 

The earnings of an offender employed in a Work Release program, less payroll deductions required by law and court ordered deductions for satisfaction of a judgement against the offender, shall be surrendered to the Facility Head or designee.  These earnings shall be deposited in the offender’s Inmate Trust Fund, in accordance with the administrative procedures for Policy 04-01-104, “Inmate Trust Fund,” and subsequently distributed in the following order:

A.
State and federal income taxes and social security deductions not otherwise withheld shall be calculated, but not deducted from the earnings, for the purpose of determining further required deductions.

B.
The cost of membership in an employee organization.

C.
Ten percent (10%) of the offender’s gross earnings, to be deposited in the Violent Crime Victim’s Compensation Fund.

D.
Not less than fifteen (15%) of the offender’s gross earnings, if that amount of the gross is available after the above deductions, must be returned with accrued interest to the offender not later than at the time of release on parole or discharge.  The payment of the fifteen percent (15%) will occur after ten (10) working days from the date of deposit of the offender’s check to allow clearance of the check by the bank.

E.
The expense of room and board (subsistence fees), as fixed by the department and the State Budget Agency, in facilities operated by the department, or, if the offender is housed in a facility not operated by the department, the amount paid by the department to the operator of the facility or other appropriate authority for room and board.  The fee shall be the lesser of forty percent (40%) of the offender’s weekly earning less the deductions listed in Procedures VI. A. and VI. B. or one hundred seventy dollars ($170.00) per week.  Subsistence fees and Violent Crime Victim’s Compensation fees shall not be collected from monetary gifts or monies transferred from other facilities; however, subsistence fees and Violent Crime Victim’s Compensation fees are to be deducted from Workers’ Compensation benefits.

F.
Court ordered costs or fines imposed as a result of conviction of an offense under Indiana law, unless the costs or fines are being paid by other means.

After the above deductions have been made, the department may, out of the remaining amount:

· Pay for the support of the offender’s dependents when directed by the offender or ordered by the court; 

· Pay to the victims or others any unpaid obligations of the offender with the written consent of the offender.  If the offender’s dependents are receiving welfare assistance, the appropriate welfare department shall be notified of these disbursements; and,  

· Any remaining amount shall be given to the offender or retained by the department in accordance with Procedure VI. B.

The department may, when special circumstances warrant or for just cause, waive the collection of room and board charges by or on behalf of a facility operated by the department or, if the offender is housed in a facility not operated by the department, authorized payment of room and board charges from other available funds.

VI.
COLLECTION/DISBURSEMENT OF OFFENDER EARNINGS: 

A Work Release participant may accept a check or money order, if the employer does not have a company check, for payment of services directly from an employer or funding source; however, the check or money order must be submitted to the Facility Head or designee immediately upon return to the facility on the day of receipt.  Cash shall not be an acceptable method of payment, unless prior approval is given in writing by the Facility Head.

A pre-numbered receipt shall be prepared in triplicate for each offender’s earnings as soon as the earnings are received by the facility.  The original receipt shall be issued to the offender, the duplicate copy forwarded to the facility’s bookkeeping staff and the triplicate copy retained in the receipt book.  Facilities not operated by the department shall follow the same procedure except that the duplicate copy shall be sent to the department’s Central Office along with a copy of the offender’s check, the bank deposit ticket and the bank deposit receipt.

All offender earnings shall be deposited no later than the next business day after receipt by the facility into the Inmate Trust Fund and entered into Offender Trust System (OTS) for distribution as outlined in Procedure VI.

All disbursements made out of the offender’s earnings to cover the deductions outlined in Procedure VI shall be in the form of checks drawn from the offender’s account in the Inmate Trust Fund to the appropriate recipient.

These procedures shall apply to the processing of offender subsistence fees and funds earmarked for the Violent Crime Victim’s Compensation Fund:

A.
Each offender Inmate Trust Fund account shall be charged, according to

established standards by the close of business of the last day of the month in which the offender participates in the work release program.  If appropriate, this transaction may occur at other times during the month, as necessary for adequate control;

B.
All charged and collected monies shall be accumulated monthly as of the close of business on the last calendar day of each month and forwarded to the Chief Financial Officer or designee no later than the tenth (10th) day of the month following the month closed;

C.
The Chief Financial Officer or designee shall be responsible for transferring all funds earmarked for contribution to the Violent Crime Victim’s Compensation Fund from a holding account to the Indiana Criminal Justice Institute on a monthly basis; and, 

D.
The Chief Financial Officer or designee shall transfer all subsistence fee monies into the Work Release Study Release Subsistence Special Revenue Fund for distribution in accordance with Procedure IV.
VII.
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND REPORTS: 

The Facility Head of each facility with a Work Release program shall include in the monthly report for that facility information regarding the earnings of offenders in the Work Release program and the distribution of those earnings.  This report shall include a summary of offender earnings, receipts and distributions for the month.

Quarterly, a summary report of contributions made to the Violent Crime Victim’s Compensation Fund shall be prepared by the Chief Financial Officer or designee and shall be distributed to the Commissioner and the Deputy Commissioner/Operations. 

VIII.
APPLICABILITY: 

These administrative procedures apply to department Work Release Centers and to privately operated programs providing contractual work release programs to the department.
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